
 
Chowan County Board of Commissioners 

SPECIAL Meeting 
Monday, July 12, 2021 

Colonial Waterfront Park 
510 South Broad Street Edenton, NC 

11:00am 
 

Minutes 
 

Senator Bob Steinburg, TDA Chairman and County Commissioner Chris Evans presented retired 
TDA Director Nancy Nicholls with the Order of Long Leaf Pine for her years of commitment 
and service to Chowan County and the Town of Edenton as TDA Director. Additional County 

Commissioners present were Chairman Bob Kirby and Alex Kehayes.  The group gathered at the 
Colonial Waterfront Park near the Roanoke River Lighthouse 510 South Broad Street Edenton, 

NC 27932. No other business was discussed. 

 
 
 
 

Chowan County Board of Commissioners 
SPECIAL Meeting 

Monday, July 12, 2021 
Chowan County Public Safety Center 

305 West Freemason Street 
5:30pm 

 
AGENDA 

 
The Chowan County Board of Commissioners held a special meeting on Monday, July 12, 2021 
at 5:30pm before the regular 6pm meeting. The special meeting was held in the Chowan County 
Public Safety Center (305 West Freemason St. Edenton, NC).  
 
Present Chair Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Chris Evans, Larry McLaughlin, Alex Kehayes, Ron 
Cummings and Ellis Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Tray Taylor was absent. 
 
Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard County Attorney Lauren Arizaga-Womble and 
Board Clerk Susanne Stallings. 
 
UClosed Session 
Commissioner Evans moved to go into closed session in accordance with NCGS 143.318.11.a.3 
(attorney client). Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
The minutes of the closed session are sealed. 
 



Commissioner Cummings moved to come out of closed session. Chair Kirby asked for all in 
favor, the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Commissioner Evans moved that the meeting be adjourned. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, 
the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 

 
Regular Meeting 

Monday, July 12, 2021 
6:00 pm 

Chowan County Public Safety Center 
305 West Freemason Street 

 
This meeting was recorded. A copy of the recording is in the meeting file labeled July 12, 2021. 

 
Present Chair Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Chris Evans, Larry McLaughlin, Tray Taylor, Alex 
Kehayes, Ron Cummings and Ellis Lawrence. 
 
Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard, Finance Officer Cathy Smith and Board Clerk 
Susanne Stallings. 
 
URegular Meeting 
Chair Kirby called the regular meeting to order and led all in the pledge of allegiance.  
 
Commissioner Evans then offered the invocation. 
 
UApproval of Agenda  
Ms. Stallings noted the following requested agenda amendment: 

- Amend #6 to add Building Inspection agreement with Bertie County 
 
Commissioner Kehayes moved to approve the agenda as amended. Chair Kirby asked for all in 
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
UPublic Comment 
Ms. Stallings noted that no public was signed up to speak. 
 
UConsent Agenda 

a. UTax Refund and Release Report 
Barnabas  $388.00  Paid Twice 
 
b. UApproval of Minutes 
The Board will review and consider approval of the minutes of June 21, 2021 Board meeting. 
 
c. USurplus Items 
 The Board will consider a request from the Water Department to surplus the following 
items: 
 
 



 Declare surplus and authorize the sale on Gov Deals: 
 2001 GMS 2500HD Truck VIN 0222 
 2007 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 
 12.5’ diameter x 19’ long Brine Tank  

 
Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Chair Kirby asked 
for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
UBroadband Survey Report 
Liza Layton Executive Director of the Edenton-Chowan Partnership provided the Board with a 
report and results from the Broadband survey and efforts of the ECP to increase the amount of 
broadband service to County residents. A copy of the Executive Summary and PowerPoint 
presentation are in the meeting file labeled July 12, 2021. Highlights from the presentation are as 
follows: 
 

- A survey was created and distributed by the Broadband Committee of the ECP.  
- 6,707 surveys were sent out, 1,216 were returned.  This is an 18% return rate.  
- 94% surveyed were households, 6% business 
- 89% Currently have internet 
- 51% were not satisfied at all with current service, 2.4% were extremely satisfied with 

current service 
- 94% surveyed feel internet is an essential service 
- Information from the survey will be shared with stakeholders and potential service 

providers 
- A request for proposals will be developed. 

 
UJohn A Holmes High School Project Update 
Superintendent Dr. Michael Sasser provided the Board with a presentation on the recently 
approved schematic design for the high school project. A copy of the PowerPoint presentation is 
in the meeting file labeled July 12, 2021. The presentation included exterior and interior 
renderings and floor plans, 
 
Following the presentation, the Board discussed the locations of classes in the proposed design. 
 
Board members discussed their desire to have a Physics class for students at John A. Holmes 
High School. 
 
UPublic Hearing – Whites Landing Rezoning 
Chair Kirby stated that the Board at the June 7P

, 
P2021 meeting opened the public hearing and 

recessed the hearing for this request until the July 12, 2021 meeting.  He stated that the purpose 
of the public hearing is to consider a request for rezoning of parcels located at Whites Landing 
on Sandy Ridge Road.  He then requested a motion to reconvene the previously recessed public 
hearing.  
 
Commissioner Cummings moved to come out of the June 6P

th
P recess. Chair Kirby asked for all in 

favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Planner Brandon Shoaf then provided the staff report.  



 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 



U

 
 



U

 
 
Mr. Shoaf noted that his findings from the Ordinance as well as the review of the petition 
indicate that 6 of the 7 Board members must vote in favor of the text amendment in order for it to 
pass. He noted that a simple majority would not be accepted based on the Ordinance 
requirement. 
 
Chair Kirby then opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Mary White 411 Sandy Ridge Rd stated that this property was inherited by her family from 
George White. She stated she felt that property owners should have the right to put a home on 
their property. She stated her concern that residents of Whites Landing were not notified of the 
rezoning in 2006 and asked the Board how this was done without notifications.  
 
County Attorney Arizaga Womble stated that the public comment period does not allow for 
question and answer of the Board however the Board may have questions following the comment 
period. She stated that mass zoning was done in 2006 county wide and there was most likely 
general notification for the public and the zoning was advertised and covered by the local paper.  
 
Ms. White stated that she is in favor of the rezoning request and asked the Board to consider the 
opinions of those that live there and not the ones who signed the petition who do not live in or 
near the development. 
 
Carlton Griffin was signed up but declined to speak. 
 
Michael White was signed up but declined to speak. 
 
Jacqueline White was signed up but declined to speak. 
 



James R. White. 411 Sandy Ridge Rd. stated he was in favor of the rezoning request. 
 
Percy White Sr. 351 Sandy Ridge Rd. stated that people are to love on another and help each 
other.  He stated that he feels as human beings they should have the right to put what they want 
on their own property. He stated he was 91 years old now but was 18 when his father purchased 
the land. He stated he did not think his father could handle seeing all of this going on. He stated 
that he would pray for all of the Board members on this decision and stated this world is in worse 
shape as ever and stated that he hoped God blessed each person in the meeting. 
 
Doris Overton 3130 Anne Court stated that her family has worked hard on this land that their 
father left them. She stated they each hoped to give the land to their children. She stated that not 
all people can afford a stick built home and she hoped the Board would make decisions that the 
children and grandchildren could afford. She stated she would pray for the Board to make the 
best and right decision. 
 
Gail Mullen 2118 George Willey Dr. stated that the persons in the audience are her family.  She 
stated she is a grandchild of the original land owner. She stated he left his family the 40 acres. 
She stated when she moved to Chowan County in 2018 she came back to be a resident of the 
County. She stated she works hard and pays taxes. She stated she is only requesting the zoning 
be changed from R-25 to RMH-25 to allow for her to put a doublewide on her property.  She 
stated she learned about the zoning restriction when she went to purchase a home and was 
stopped after the mobile home company talked to the Planner.  She stated she has copies of the 
2006 minutes where the zoning was adopted and there is no mention of Whites Landing.  She 
stated that today the properties at Whites Landing are posted with signs everywhere.  She stated 
the public hearing allows the general public to weigh in on a property decision that has nothing 
to do with them.  She stated her family wishes to keep her grandfathers’ legacy alive so that her 
kids and grandkids can survive. She stated her family is hard working. She asked how the Board 
would feel if they voted for what the Board could do with their property.  She stated she did not 
understand how they got to this point. She stated her family is proud of their land. She stated her 
family is close and this is why they chose to come back home. She stated their community is not 
a trailer park but a family owned subdivision. She stated her concerns over not being notified in 
2006 when the property was zoned to R 25.  She stated if the rezoning is approved she will 
follow the zoning laws with regards to her home purchase and she thanked her family for 
supporting her. 
 
Parisanne Turcotte 412 Sandy Ridge Road stated she also owns the property at 414 Sandy Ridge 
Road.  She stated she would admit she was one of the persons who signed the petition in 
opposition to the rezoning. She stated that at that time she had no idea what the request was for 
and she came to the meeting last month for more information.  She stated she had the opportunity 
to meet her amazing neighbors.  She stated she had questions about the rezoning wondering why 
all of the properties were included and why her property is one of those included in the rezoning.  
She asked what is the harm to allow someone to put a mobile home on the property that they 
own.  She stated that there are currently other mobile homes in that community now. She stated 
that when she signed the petition that she was told that there would be multiple rental properties 
on the site.  She stated she sat down with the family and has a different opinion than when she 
signed the petition.  She stated she would ask to have herself, her husband and mother in law’s 
names removed from the petition that she is no long in opposition to the request.  She stated that 
reading the ordinance the only difference between R 25 and RMH 25 is that a mobile home is 



allowed in RMH 25 and not in R 25.  She stated that a drive down Sandy Ridge Road there are 
many properties that are in disrepair.  She stated that all of her neighbors take care of their 
properties and added they are better cared for than her own property.  She stated that after 
working long hours and volunteering it is difficult to clean your yard like her neighbors do.  She 
stated that you cannot tell the difference between a modular home and a double wide now.  She 
stated that this family is unified and wish to live together in their community. She stated that the 
Board should not wish to divide this family, and the Board should encourage growth in that 
community. She stated she supports the rezoning request and allow the land owners the 
opportunity to put what they can afford on their lots. 
 
Being no further public comment, Commissioner Lawrence moved to close the public comment 
period. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Mr. Shoaf explained that the County went from no zoning to county wide zoning noting many of 
the zoning recommendations came from the Wooten Company who the County contracted to 
zone the County. He noted that the Pins included in the proposed rezoning included the PINS 
used for the R25 designation. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence asked if those who signed the petition and asked to be removed would 
impact the % needed for the super majority vote. 
 
Mr. Shoaf stated no there is still 5% represented. 
 
Ms. Arizaga-Womble stated that the ordinance outlines the procedure for a public hearing and 
that is what is required for any rezoning. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin noted that the property on the other side of the road is not part of Mr. 
White’s property. He asked if it can be excluded from the rezoning.  
 
Ms. Womble stated that those parcels were part of the rezoning because NC law does not allow 
the County to pick and choose.  
 
Mr. Shoaf explained why the parcels across the road were selected because they were part of the 
initial zoning.  He noted that it would be difficult to site a mobile home park on any of those 
parcels because of the lot size requirements. He stated it would be a mobile home on an 
individual lot not a park if the rezoning was approved. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin asked what is the difference between a modular or single 
wide/double wide. 
 
Mr. Shoaf stated that a modular is built to the state building code and a manufactured home is 
built to HUD standards and are not inspected the same.  He noted that from the outside it is 
difficult to tell the difference between the two. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin asked if the materials used in a double wide or single wide not as 
good as those used in a modular with regards to quality. 
 
Mr. Shoaf stated that they are not the same materials. 



 
Commissioner McLaughlin stated that mobile homes often have particle board. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence stated that stick built homes could have particle board. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin stated that mobile homes are considered vehicles and are 
depreciating assets on the tax rolls however the services required by the owner are the same of a 
home owner. 
 
Commissioner Kehayes stated he drove out to the property and noted there are very few single 
wides.  He stated that all of the homes in the development are on brick foundations.  He stated 
that he could not tell the difference between the mobile homes and the modular homes.  He noted 
that the County ordinance requires double wide homes to be set on a brick foundation.  He noted 
that singlewide homes do not have to have a solid foundation and that aluminum skirting is 
allowed.  He stated that often this skirting changes the character of the home. He noted this 
subdivision is very nice and stated his concern with allowing the rezoning to change the 
character of the current neighborhood.  He stated that Ms. Mullen wants to put in a doublewide 
with a brick foundation but the rezoning does not prohibit someone from installing a singlewide 
with lattice around the bottom.  He stated he was impressed by the family comments and 
sentiment for their property and stated he was satisfied with the intent of the family for the 
property.  He stated his concern with setting a precedence for other properties however he feels 
the White family makes a good case for the rezoning. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence stated that the property was not zoned RMH 25 however doublewides 
were previously allowed and then zoned out with the county wide zoning. He stated his concern 
with the County telling the property owners what they do and do not have the right to put on 
their land.  He stated that he will vote in favor of the rezoning. 
 
Chair Kirby noted that many of the lots are currently less than 25,000 square feet which make 
them non-conforming lots with regards to the zoning ordinance. 
 
Mr. Shoaf stated that 17 of the 40 lots are non-conforming. 
 
Chair Kirby asked if the non-conforming lots are buildable lots. 
 
Mr. Shoaf stated that the lots are buildable however they will have to meet the setback standards 
in the ordinance. 
 
Chair Kirby stated his concern with perpetuating the problem with the non-conforming lots to 
rezone the property. 
 
Ms. Arizaga Womble stated that there are provisions in the ordinance for non-conforming lots. 
 
Chair Kirby stated that there is nothing in the ordinance that requires a mobile home to be brand 
new. He stated that a mobile home from 1977 is considered conforming. He cautioned the Board 
members that opening up this can of worms could perpetuate the problem. 
 
Commissioner Kirby asked what are the unintended consequences of the vote. 



 
Mr. Shoaf stated that the ordinance does have additional requirements such as septic and water in 
addition to setbacks. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence made a motion to approve the subdivision.  
 
Ms. Arizaga Womble discussed the procedural motion which is included for the Board to 
consider. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence withdrew his motion. He then moved that this amendment will be 
consistent with the 2018 Land Use Plan or any other plan officially adopted by the Board of 
Commissioners because it provides for housing options in the County. 
 
Chair Kirby stated that according to the Land Use Plan this area is not indicated at medium high 
density residential and stated he did not feel it was consistent with the Land use Plan. 
 
Chair Kirby then asked for all in favor, the motion passed (6-1 Kirby). 
 
Commissioner Lawrence moved to approve the rezoning request. Chair Kirby asked for all in 
favor, the motion passed (6-1 Kirby). 
 
UBuilding Inspections Agreement 
Planner Brandon Shoaf provided the board with a draft agreement at the request of the Bertie 
County Planning and Inspections Department. He stated that currently Bertie County is without a 
building inspector, their inspector recently resigned to take a job in Greenville. Bertie has a 
similar agreement in place with Washington County, but has the need for more inspections than 
Washington County can provide. So, they have asked us for similar assistance. He stated that he 
recommends approval of the agreement with the understanding that he will not send an inspector 
to Bertie, more than one day a week, for the duration of the agreement. He stated he would also 
like to ensure that we will only send one inspector for service in Bertie at any time. He asked 
that, as the agreement allows, that you allow him and my counterpart in Bertie to work out what 
day that is, and set that to our interoffice schedule. 
 
Commissioner Cummings moved to approve the agreement as presented and recommended by 
Mr. Shoaf. 
 
Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Chair Kirby called for a five minute recess. After five minutes he called the meeting back to 
order. 
 
UTax Items 
Tax Administrator Melissa Radke presented the Board with a PowerPoint presentation of the 
Chowan County Property Tax Settlement. A copy of the report and Power Point is in the meeting 
file labeled July 12, 2021.  
 
She then presented the Board with the following items: 
- UAcceptance of Settlement 



Commissioner Evans moved to approve the Acceptance of Settlement as presented. Chair Kirby 
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF SETTLEMENT OF CURRENT AND PRIOR YEAR TAXES 

 

WHEREAS, the Chowan County Tax Collector has provided a report of persons owning real 
property whose taxes for the preceding fiscal year remain unpaid and the principle amount owed 
by each person; and 

WHEREAS, the Chowan County Tax Collector has provided a list of persons not owning real 
property whose personal property taxes for the preceding fiscal year remain unpaid and the 
principle amount owed by each person; and 

WHEREAS, the Chowan County Tax Collector has provided a report of diligent efforts to 
collect unpaid taxes for the preceding fiscal year and prior years as charged; and 

WHEREAS, the list of persons owing taxes (but who listed no real property) for the current 
fiscal year are found to be insolvent; and 

WHEREAS, the Chowan County Tax Collector has provided an accounting of all taxes charged 
and collected for the current and prior years; 

Hereby, be it resolved that the Chowan County Board of County Commissioners do hereby 
accept the settlement of current and prior year taxed as provided by the Cowan County Tax 
Collector. 

Adopted this 12P

th
P day of July, 2021. 

 
- UOrder to Collect 
Commissioner Evans moved to approve both orders to collect as presented. Chair Kirby asked 
for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
 
CHOWAN COUNTY 

 
 

ORDER OF THE CHOWAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S.105-321, G.S. 153A-156 AND G.S. 160A-215.2 

FOR THE COLLECTION OF 2021 TAXES 
 
 
TO: TAX COLLECTOR OF CHOWAN COUNTY, TOWN OF EDENTON 
 
 
 You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes set forth in 
the 2021 tax records filed in the Office of the Chowan County Tax Collector, and in the tax receipts 
herewith delivered to you in the amounts and from the taxpayers likewise therein set forth.  You 



are further authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the 2021 taxes charged and assessed 
as provided by law for adjustments, changes, and additions to the tax records and tax receipts 
delivered to you which are made in accordance with law.  Such taxes are hereby declared to be a 
first lien on all real property of the respective taxpayers in Chowan County, the  Town of Edenton, 
Belvidere Chappell Hill Fire Protection District, Center Hill Crossroads Fire Protection District, 
Edenton Rural Fire Protection District, and any other special district located within Chowan 
County; and this order shall be a full and sufficient authority to direct, require, and enable you to 
levy on and sell, any real or personal property of such taxpayers, and attach wages and/or other 
funds, of such taxpayers, for and on account thereof, in accordance with law. 
 
 You are also hereby authorized, empowered and commanded to administer and to collect 
taxes on gross receipts derived from retail short-term leases or rentals of motor vehicles as set forth 
under G.S. 153A-156, gross receipts derived from short-term leases or rentals of heavy equipment 
as set forth under G.S. 160A–215.2, and Occupancy Taxes as set forth under G.S 153A-155. You 
are hereby authorized to promulgate such rules and procedures necessary to administer these taxes 
which are not inconsistent or contrary to applicable law. 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
 
CHOWAN COUNTY 
 
 

ORDER OF THE CHOWAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 105-373, G.S. 105-321, G.S.105-330.3,  

 G.S.153A-156 AND G.S. 160A-215.2 
FOR THE COLLECTION OF 2020 AND PRIOR YEARS’ TAXES 

 
 
TO: TAX COLLECTOR OF CHOWAN COUNTY, TOWN OF EDENTON 
 
 
 You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes remaining 
unpaid as set forth in the 2011 through 2020 tax records filed in the Office of the Chowan 
County Tax Collector, and in the tax receipts herewith delivered to you in the amounts and from 
the taxpayers likewise therein set forth.  You are further authorized, empowered, and 
commanded to collect the 2011 through 2020 taxes charged and assessed as provided by law for 
adjustments, changes, and additions to the tax records and tax receipts delivered to you which are 
made in accordance with law.   
 
            You are also hereby authorized, empowered and commanded to administer and to collect 
taxes on gross receipts derived from retail short-term leases or rentals of motor vehicles as set forth 
under G.S. 153A-156, gross receipts derived from short-term leases or rentals of heavy equipment 
as set forth under G.S. 160A–215.2, and Occupancy Taxes as set forth under G.S 153A-155. You 
are hereby authorized to promulgate such rules and procedures necessary to administer these taxes 
which are not inconsistent or contrary to applicable law. Such taxes are hereby declared to be a 
first lien on all real property of the respective taxpayers in Chowan County, the  Town of Edenton, 
Belvidere Chappell Hill Fire Protection District, Center Hill Crossroads Fire Protection District, 
Edenton Rural Fire Protection District, and any other special district located within Chowan 
County; and this order shall be a full and sufficient authority to direct, require, and enable you to 



levy on and sell, any real or personal property of such taxpayers, and attach wages and/or other 
funds, of such taxpayers, for and on account thereof, in accordance with law. 
 
 Taxes on personal property for 2010 and prior years have been deemed insolvent and 
therefore uncollectible; the Chowan County Commission, do hereby relieve the tax collector of 
the charge of collecting taxes on these insolvent bills pursuant to G.S 105-373(g) for 2010 and 
prior years.  
 
 

     WITNESS my hand and official seal, this the 12P

th
P day of July, 2020. 

 
Board members congratulated Ms. Radke and her staff on their historic collection rate of 99% and 
thanked her and her staff for their diligence. 
 
UAppointments 
UShepard Pruden Memorial Library Board 
Commissioner Kehayes moved to reappointment of the following individuals to the Shepard 
Pruden Memorial Library Board 
- Faison Winborne 
- Sherronne Battle 
- Jenny Wells 
 
Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
 UPettigrew Regional Library Board 
Commissioner Kehayes moved to appoint Marie Perry to fill the place previously held by Shelby 
Strother 
  
Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
  
Chair Kirby noted that the following Boards are advertising vacancies, applications are needed. 
DSS Board 
Recreation Advisory Committee-There is one vacancy upcoming for this committee. The Recreation 
Department is seeking parents who currently have youth enrolled in Recreation programs OR individuals 
who have a passion for Sports and Recreation programming to be represented on this committee.   
Chowan County Planning Board - Area A 
Chowan County Board of Adjustment- There are currently two vacancies both of which are “alternate” 
seats. This Board is NOT assigned by districts at this time. 
Town of Edenton Planning Board- Applicant must reside in the ETJ 
 
UCapital Project 
UAnimal Shelter Parking Lot 
Mr. Howard provided the Board with quotes for repairs to the Animal Shelter parking lot. He 
stated that Stevenson Sand was the low bidder for the amount of $32,114. He noted that the 
engineer provided the County with contractor names to send bids to and that Stevenson sand is 
recommended. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the bid from Stevenson Sand.  
 



Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
UFinancial Items 
Finance Officer Cathy Smith presented the following: 
UBudget Amendments 
UBA-2021-072 

 
UBA2021-073 

 
 

TDA
Salaries - Regular 21,601.98             
Fica Tax 1,652.28               
Retirement 2,244.42               
Hospitalization 1,664.76               
Professional Services (2,500.00)             
Office Supplies (2,000.00)             
Travel (1,500.00)             
Printing (6,000.00)             
Advertising (2,663.44)             
Signage (5,000.00)             
Promotional/Ambassadors (3,500.00)             
Digital Advertising (4,000.00)             

Balanced -                           -                         

Justification:

To amend the 2021 budget for TDA to include  additional salaries and 
benefits to cover terminal benefits of retiree.  No additional funding is 
being requested and monies are being transferred between line items.

51-8150-182-00

51-8150-370-01
51-8150-520-00

51-8150-693-00
51-8150-691-00

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

51-8150-199-00
51-8150-261-00
51-8150-311-00
51-8150-341-00

51-8150-121-00
51-8150-181-00

51-8150-183-00

HAVA Grant 19,304.50               
HAVA Grant 19,304.50             

Balanced 19,304.50               19,304.50             
-                         

Justification:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

Elections
11-3417-367-00
11-4170-602-00

To amend the 2021 budget for Board of Elections to include additional 
funding received from HAVA  (Help America Vote Act).



UBA2021-074 

 
 
UBA-2021-075 

Salaries - Regular 3,562.13               
Salaries - PT 2,853.50               
FICA 142.02                   
Retirement 628.94                   
Hospitalization (650.23)                 

Salaries - Regular (2,697.55)             
FICA (569.13)                 
Retirement (147.25)                 
Hospitalization (2,178.26)             
Professional Services - Tax Audit (944.17)                 

Salaries - Regular 6.88                       
Salaries - PT (6.88)                      

State Conveyance Tax 50,812.00               
Conveyance Tax 50,812.00             
Salaries - Regular 3,683.58               
FICA 164.93                   
Retirement 461.96                   
Hospitalization (4,617.59)             
Supplemental Pension Fund 307.12                   

Land Records
Salaries - Regular (2,146.16)             

Salaries - Regular 499.84                   
Retirement 106.69                   
Hospitalization 1,539.63               

Maintenance
Salaries - Regular (754.13)                 
Salaries - OT 754.13                   

Senior Center
Salaries - Regular 76.58                     
Salaries - PT (76.58)                   

Central Comm
FICA 106.51                   
Retirement (106.51)                 

Concealed Weapon Permits 10,230.00               
Concealed Weapon Permits 10,230.00             

Animal Control
Salaries - Regular 0.16                       
Salaries - OT 796.72                   
Retirement 104.04                   
Hospitalization 22.75                     

Animal Shelter
Salaries - Regular 164.73                   
Salaries - PT 3,424.79               
FICA 265.66                   
Retirement 72.94                     
Hospitalization (4,851.79)             

Soil & Water
Retirement 45.20                     
Hospitalization 45.50                     
Departmental Supplies (90.70)                   

Salaries - Regular 0.08                       
Retirement 56.12                     
Hospitalization 22.75                     
Professional Services (78.95)                   

Salaries - Regular 4,999.84               
Salaries - PT (5,846.10)             
Retirement 687.01                   
Hospitalization 159.25                   

Salaries - OT 6,383.76               
Salaries - PT (6,383.76)             

Salaries - OT 1,223.92               
Salaries - PT (1,223.92)             

Balanced 61,042.00               61,042.00             
-                         

Justification:

11-4180-182-00

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

11-4170-122-00

Info Technology
11-4210-121-00

11-4210-183-00

11-4140-121-00
11-4140-181-00
11-4140-182-00
11-4140-193-00
11-4140-191-00

11-4170-121-00

Register of Deeds
11-3418-412-00
11-4180-497-00
11-4180-121-00

11-4180-189-00

11-4180-181-00

Admin & Finance
11-4120-121-00
11-4120-126-00

Tax Administration

Elections

11-4120-181-00
11-4120-182-00
11-4120-182-00

11-4381-181-00

Budget 2021 Clean-up

Sheriff
11-3431-891-00
11-4310-498-00

11-4381-182-00

Planning
11-4910-121-00
11-4910-182-00

Recreation

11-6130-182-00
11-6130-183-00

11-4910-191-00

11-6130-121-00
11-6130-126-00

11-4380-121-00

11-4180-183-00

11-4210-182-00

11-4240-121-00

11-4381-121-00
11-4381-126-00

11-4380-122-00
11-4380-182-00
11-4380-183-00

11-4190-121-00

11-4240-122-00

11-4268-121-00
11-4268-126-00

11-4270-181-00
11-4270-182-00

11-4381-183-00

11-4730-182-00
11-4730-183-00
11-4730-299-00

11-4910-183-00

EMS
60-4370-122-00
60-4370-126-00

Water
61-7120-122-00
61-7120-126-00



 

*Preservation/Automation 1,630.16                 
*Dept Supplies - Auto/Pres 543.39                   
*Contr Svcs - Automation/Pres 543.38                   
*C/O - Auto / Pres 543.39                   

*Sheriff Donations 33.74                       
*Donation - Expense 33.74                     
*Safe Kids Program 42.25                       
*Safe Kids Expense 42.25                     

*Donations - Chowan 350.00                     
*Donations - Gates 40.00                       
*Donations - Perquimans 270.00                     
*Donation - Expense 660.00                   
*Adoption - Chowan 550.00                     
*Adoption - Gates 80.00                       
*Adoption - Perquimans 225.00                     
*Adoption - Other 130.00                     
*Contr Svcs - Spay/Neuter 985.00                   
*A.W.A.R.E. Reimbursement 4,561.36                 
*A.W.A.R.E. Reimbursement 4,561.36               

*SHIIP Grant (Senior Health Insurance 
Information Program) 25.00                       
*SHIIP Grant (Senior Health Insurance 
Information Program) 25.00                     
*AG Program Fees Discretionary 650.00                     
*Ag Program Discretionary 650.00                   
*4-H Fees Discretionary 740.00                     
*4-H Fees Discretionary 740.00                   
*Livestock Program 34,245.00               
*Livestock Program 34,245.00             

*Recreation Donations 1,490.00                 
*Donations - Dept Supplies 1,490.00               

*Donations - Home Del Meals 25.00                       
*Donations - Home Del Meals 25.00                     
*Reg Fees - Trips 442.00                     
*TRIPS - Senior Citizens 442.00                   
*Registration Fees Activities 75.00                       
*Activities - Dept. Supplies 75.00                     
*Healthways 675.00                     
*Healthways 675.00                   

*DSS Special Events 297.00                     
*DSS Special Events 297.00                   

Balanced 46,576.51               46,576.51             

Total Discretionary Income Received FYE 2021 185,880.57            

Justification:

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

Register of Deeds
11-3418-415-00
11-4180-298-00
11-4180-440-00
11-4180-511-00

11-3431-245-00

Sheriff's Office
11-3431-232-00
11-4317-440-00

11-3438-895-02

11-4317-445-00
Animal Shelter

11-3438-894-00
11-3438-894-01
11-3438-894-02
11-4381-600-00
11-3438-895-00
11-3438-895-01

11-3438-895-03
11-4381-441-00
11-3438-897-00
11-4381-601-00

Cooperative Ext:

11-3495-363-00

11-4950-600-00

11-3495-370-00
11-4953-440-00
11-3495-378-00
11-4953-448-00
11-3495-379-00
11-4953-449-00

Senior Center

Recreation
11-3612-487-00
11-6130-299-01

12-3531-230-14

11-3616-532-00
11-4268-904-01
11-3616-533-00
11-4268-312-00
11-3616-533-01
11-4268-299-01
11-3616-535-03
11-4268-352-02

DSS

12-5310-450-00

To amend the 2021 budget to include Discretionary income received 
through June 2021.



Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the budget amendments as presented. Chair Kirby 
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
UUpdate on JA Holmes Highschool Project Expenses 
Ms. Smith provided the Board with an update project expense report. A copy of the report is in 
the meeting file labeled July 12, 2021. 
 
UExternal Board/Committee Report 
Chair Kirby stated that Board members are asked to report on the activities of the external boards 
to which they have been appointed. 
 
Commissioner Evans reported that the retired TDA Director Nancy Nicholls was awarded the 
Order of the Long Leaf Pine earlier that morning by Senator Bob Steinburg. 
 
UManager’s Report 
County Manager Kevin Howard provided the Board with the following: 
 
UProject Tracking Sheet 
A copy of the report is in the meeting file labeled July 12, 2021. 
 
UTimely and Important Matters 
Ms. Stallings noted that the CIP Committee will be meeting soon. 
 
UAdjourn 
Being no further business Commissioner Evans moved to adjourn the meeting. Chair Kirby 
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
 
 

_______________________________________  ______________________________ 

Bob Kirby, Chairman      Susanne Stallings, Clerk 


